

Improving People's Lives

Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee

Date: Wednesday, 30th September, 2020

Time: 1.30 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting – Public Access via YouTube

https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil

Councillor Rob Appleyard (Chair)
Councillor Paul Myers
Councillor Joanna Wright
Co-opted members non-voting: Graham Page (Independent)

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers Press and Public



Marie Todd Democratic Services Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG Telephone: 01225 394414

Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk

E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

NOTES:

1. **Inspection of Papers:** Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council's website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

2. **Details of decisions taken at this meeting** can be found in the minutes which will be circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet https://youtube.com/banescouncil

The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Participation at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to enable the public to make their views known at meetings. They may submit a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.

Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Wednesday notice must be received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Friday.

Further details of the scheme can be found at:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

Decision Making Powers of the Sub-Committee:

- 1. To discharge the Council's role as Corporate Trustee for the Alice Park Trust, in line with Charities Commission guidance. The objects of the Alice Park Trust are for use as a public park and children's recreation ground.
- 2. To agree the Trust's annual budget and business plan.
- 3. To approve the use of any reserves.
- 4. To agree the Trust's annual accounts.
- 5. To receive and respond to the audit findings relating to the annual accounts.
- 6. To receive reports on the effective day to day management and financial performance of the Trust.
- 7. To allow interested parties to give their view on the performance and direction of the Trust.

Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee - Wednesday, 30th September, 2020

at 1.30 pm in the Virtual Meeting - Zoom - Public Access via YouTube https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil

AGENDA

- 1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
- APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION
- 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to indicate:

- (a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.
- (b) The nature of their interest.
- (c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest <u>or</u> an other interest, (as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is recommended to seek advice from the Council's Monitoring Officer or a member of his staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

The Chair will announce any items of urgent business accepted since the agenda was prepared under the Access to Information provisions.

- 5. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS
- 6. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 JANUARY 2020 (Pages 7 14)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2020.

7. UPDATE REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING THE ALICE PARK CAFE LEASE

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider a report (to follow) regarding the Alice Park Café lease.

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

The Sub-Committee is invited to pass the following resolution:

Having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not

disclosing relevant information, the Sub-Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, **RESOLVES** that the public shall be excluded from the meeting for agenda item 9, and that the reporting of that part of the meeting shall be prevented under Section 100(5A), because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended.

9. UPDATE REPORT - ALICE PARK CAFE LEASE - EXEMPT APPENDIX

The Democratic Services Officer for this meeting is Marie Todd who can be contacted on 01225 394414.



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

MINUTES OF ALICE PARK TRUST SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, 22nd January, 2020

Present: Councillors Rob Appleyard (Chair), Paul Myers and Sarah Moore (in place of Joanna Wright) and Graham Page (Independent Member)

29 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

30 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer read out the emergency evacuation procedure.

31 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Joanna Wright – substitute Cllr Sarah Moore.

32 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

33 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

There was no urgent business.

34 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

- (a) Derek Swift submitted a number of questions. Copies of the questions and answers were circulated at the meeting and are attached as an appendix to these minutes.
- (b) Tony Hickman made a statement saying that he loves the park and has done a lot to improve it. It has been a Bath in Bloom winner. The café is one of the plastic free top 60 businesses in Bath, there have been two new initiatives since the award – paper cones and resealable cans. He supports local businesses including food, crafts and cards so that they are happy.

Local charities and local schools are also helped with enterprise projects. The café supports the local community and has a recognised safe space for autistic children. It is open every day and provides employment for 7 adults and 2 juniors. The dedicated and loyal staff that are at the meeting today have combined Alice Park employment of over 28 years.

The parks department are happy and property services seem happy. Customers like the café too with over 480 reviews on google, trip advisor etc with 477 good or excellent reviews.

There is more to come:

- Community events
- A Friends group to fund raise for the Alice Park Trust
- Enclose the shed at the back
- · Green flag status aim

Don't ruin a good thing. Let us carry on developing the best park in the South West. Let's keep making everyone happy!

- (c) Colin Fairweather from the U3A tennis club stated that the group has been running for over 20 years and has contributed financially to Alice Park. The group would like to plan for the summer season and would like to know more about the arrangements for the upgrading of the tennis courts. The surface of the courts is currently not very good.
- (d) Jane Shaw from the Roller Derby Group asked whether it would be possible for the group to use the lower tennis courts.

Cllr Rob Appleyard responded to the questions as follows:

- He acknowledged the contribution that the café has made to the park. He
 understood the concerns regarding the future lease arrangements and stated
 that the service provided by the café was greatly valued.
- He explained that the aspiration is to improve the tennis facilities in the park and hoped that the Trust could work with the tennis club to facilitate this. He agreed to keep the tennis club updated on future plans for the courts.
- He explained that the plans for the tennis courts are currently under discussion and stated that, although it was unlikely that the lower tennis courts would be available for use by the Roller Derby Group it was possible that an alternative area could be found.

35 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 DECEMBER 2019

Graham Page queried whether the words "Sub-Committee" should be deleted from Minute No. 26, Resolution (3) as it was actually referring to the Alice Park <u>Trust</u> and not the Sub-Committee.

The Legal Services Manager explained that the Council is the sole corporate trustee and that the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee administers the Trust on behalf of the Council. Therefore, the decision could not be overturned because of the wording used.

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 December 2019 were confirmed and signed as a correct record.

36 ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

The Sub-Committee considered a report which set out the accounts and annual report for the Alice Park Trust for 2019/20 for submission to the Charity Commission.

Members thanked Steve Rann, Group Accountant, for all his work on the accounts and budget. Cllr Myers was satisfied that he now had backing evidence for each budget item and asked that this information be shared with all Sub-Committee members. He also requested that events, booking arrangements and a charging policy be discussed at a future meeting. He suggested that, in future, internal invoices should be received throughout the year as and when work was carried out. Currently this was dealt with by an internal transfer with payment being made annually in advance. He suggested that quarterly invoices would be a better arrangement going forward. This would also enable the Sub-Committee members to have a clearer idea about the work that the Council is carrying out on behalf of the Trust.

Graham Page welcomed the report and the improved format.

RESOLVED:

- (1) To agree and sign the financial statements of the Alice Park Trust for the year ending 31 March 2019 and to approve their submission to the Charity Commission.
- (2) To agree and sign the annual report for the Alice Park Trust for the year ending 31 March 2019 and to approve its submission to the Charity Commission.

37 ALICE PARK TRUST BUDGET

The Sub-Committee considered a report which gave an update on the 2019/20 budgets and current year financial position.

Cllr Appleyard noted the recommendation to delegate approval for the Parks Manager to spend a certain level of funding. He felt that there should be some consultation with members in the first instance prior to a decision being made.

Cllr Myers felt that there should be provision in the budget for emergency works which could be signed off following completion. It was important for the Sub-Committee to have clarity on spending decisions.

Graham Page was grateful for the work carried out by the Council to support the park such as arboricultural work, bin emptying and maintenance of play equipment. However, it was important to regularise the way money is spent and perhaps an annual grant from the Council to the Trust would be more appropriate. He appreciated that the Council funding ensured that the Trust remained solvent. He felt

that the maintenance team should have the authority to carry out urgent work if required.

Cllr Myers would welcome a 5-year budget plan which would enable the Trust to identify any potential gaps and to address this in a more timely manner. There should also be more awareness and discipline about work that the Council is carrying out.

Cllr Appleyard recommended a 10-year plan going forward with the aim of the Trust becoming self-sufficient and no longer requiring financial assistance from the Council. It was important that any organisation using the park for a commercial activity should make a contribution to enable the park to be sustainable.

RESOLVED:

- (1) To note the budget report.
- (2) To delegate Alice Park budget approval of up to £2k to Bath and North East Somerset Council's Parks Manager. This power should only be used in the case of emergency work affecting health and safety and/or amenity following approval from the Chair and one other member of the Sub-Committee.
- (3) Following such approval the Chair must report the decision to the next meeting of the Sub-Committee explaining the action taken and the reason for this.
- (4) To agree to start the process of drafting a 10-year financial plan for the park.

38 EVENTS IN ALICE PARK - POLICY AND APPLICATION FORM

The Sub-Committee considered a draft events policy and application form which had been prepared by Graham Page. Members thanked Graham for the work that he had undertaken to produce the documents.

Graham then explained that the Council's events team had withdrawn its support to the Trust and that this had left a gap. It was unlikely that very large events would take place in the park (i.e. over 500 people). A reference had been made to drones as these could constitute a health and safety risk. It was also important to consider the use of flammable gas in the park and he suggested that barbeques should be banned.

Cllr Appleyard stated that he would take advice from the Council regarding the use of drones in the park. He also required more information on the use of gas. Barbeques could be managed by providing suitable facilities which could be more easily controlled.

Cllr Myers stated that there should be a clear process for events and a charging policy. Cllr Appleyard explained that the Trust currently used the Council rate card for events.

Cllr Moore suggested that there should also be reference to action required following an event such as clearing up the site etc. It would also be important to consider a clear licensing regime and a system for logging dates.

RESOLVED: To agree that the Trust should adopt its own events policy and to work on the detail over the coming months.

39 REQUEST FOR MULTI-USE BALL WALL

Cllr Appleyard reported that he had received a request to consider installing a multiuse ball wall in Alice Park. Some further details were circulated. If members wished to install this equipment, they would have to consider the space required and a suitable location as well as any health and safety issues. They would also have to undertake some consultation. Cllr Appleyard also agreed to investigate any planning requirements.

RESOLVED: To explore this proposal in more detail at the next meeting.

40 MESH NET REPLACEMENT

The Sub-Committee noted that the Chair has approved the replacement of a cargo net on the climbing frame in Alice Park at a cost of £1,471 plus VAT. The net had to be replaced urgently due to disrepair and subsequent safety implications.

41 ALICE PARK PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

The Sub-Committee considered a report which set out the contractual arrangement currently in place for the provision of public conveniences at Alice Park.

It was noted that the contract was in place until 2029 and that there would be a penalty if the Trust broke the contract before this date. The facilities are cleaned at least twice per day and there is a charge of 20p to use them.

Graham Page queried whether the current contract is a good deal for the Trust and whether better value could be obtained elsewhere.

On balance members felt that the current contract is fit for purpose and provides value and security for users of the park.

RESOLVED: To retain the current arrangements for the provision of toilets in Alice Park.

42 ALICE PARK CAFE LEASE

The Board considered a report regarding the lease for the Alice Park Café. The report gave a summary of existing terms of the café lease, gave advice on actions

which need to be taken with regard to the lease and options which need to be considered before the termination date of the lease. It also covered considerations regarding the lease end and occupation going forward.

Cllr Appleyard stated that he understood the concerns of the current lessee and his members of staff. He explained that the Trust had to go through the correct process to obtain best value and confirmed that matters would be progressed as soon as possible.

The Sub-Committee agreed to discuss this matter in private session as exempt information was likely to be disclosed.

43 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Sub-Committee agreed to meet in approximately four weeks' time. The exact date will be confirmed in due course.

44 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED that:

Having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not disclosing relevant information, the Sub-Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public shall be excluded from the meeting for agenda items 17 and 18, and that the reporting of that part of the meeting shall be prevented under Section 100A(5A), because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended.

45 ALICE PARK PUBLIC CONVENIENCES - EXEMPT APPENDIX

The Sub-Committee considered an exempt appendix which gave details of the Healthmatic contract for the public conveniences in Alice Park.

RESOLVED: To retain the current arrangements for the provision of toilets in Alice Park.

46 ALICE PARK CAFE LEASE - EXEMPT APPENDIX

The Sub-Committee considered a report regarding the lease for the Alice Park Café. The report gave a summary of existing terms of the café lease, gave advice on actions which need to be taken with regard to the lease and options which need to be considered before the termination date. It also covered considerations regarding the lease end and occupation going forward.

Cllr Appleyard stated that he understood the concerns of the current lessee and his members of staff. He explained that the Trust had to go through the correct process to obtain best value and confirmed that matters would be progressed as soon as possible.

The Sub-Committee discussed this matter in private session as exempt information was likely to be disclosed.

RESOLVED: To agree that the lease for the café be openly marketed to obtain the best terms.

The meeting ended at 6.25 pm
Chair(person)
Date Confirmed and Signed
Prenared by Democratic Services

This page is intentionally left blank